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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS

AMANDA SCHNORRBUSCH, individually
and on behalf of all others similarly situated,

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
Plaintiff,
Case No.: 3:18-cv-1848

V.

GC SERVICES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

P N N S N N N N N

Defendant.

COMPILAINT AND JURY DEMAND

COMES NOW, Plaintiff Amanda Schnorrbusch, individually and on behalf of all others
similarly situated, by and through the undersigned counsel, and for her complaint against Defendant,
GC Services Limited Partnership, under the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1692, et
seq. (“FDCPA?”), states as follows:

JURISDICTION

1. This court has jurisdiction of the federal claim under 15 U.S.C. § 1692k(d).
2. Venue is proper because the acts and transactions occurred here, Plaintiff resides here,

and Defendant transacts business here.

STANDING

3. Plaintiff has a congressionally defined right to receive all communications from a debt
collector free from any misrepresentations and false threats.

4. Detendant’s collection activities violated the FDCPA.

5. Plaintiff has thus suffered an injury as a result of Defendant’s conduct, giving rise to

standing before this Court. Spokeo, Inc. v. Robins, 136 S. Ct. 1540, 1544 (2016), quoting Lujan v.

Defenders of Wildlife, 504 U.S. 555, 580 (1992) (Congress has the power to define injuries and

articulate chains of causation that will give rise to a case or controversy where none existed before.);
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Bellwood v. Dwivedi, 895 F. 2d 1521, 1526-27 (7th Cir. 1990) (“Congtress can create new substantive

rights, such as a right to be free from misrepresentations, and if that right is invaded the holder of the
right can sue without running afoul of Article III, even if he incurs no other injury[.]”).

6. “Without the protections of the FDCPA, Congress determined, the ‘[e|xisting laws

and procedures for redressing these injuries are inadequate to protect consumers.” Lane v. Bayview

Loan Servicing, LI.C, No. 15 C 10446, 2016 WL 3671467, at *3 (N.D. Ill. July 11, 2016)(quoting 15

U.S.C. § 1692(b)). Thus, a failure to honor a consumer’s right under the FDCPA constitutes an injury
in fact for Article III standing. See id. at *3 (holding that a consumer “has alleged a sufficiently
concrete injury because he alleges that [Defendant] denied him the right to information due to him

under the FDCPA.”); see also Church v. Accretive Health, Inc., No. 15-15708, 2016 WL 3611543, at

*3 (11th Cir. July 6, 2016) (holding that consumer’s § 1692¢g claim was sufficiently concrete to satisty
injury-in-fact requirement).
7. “|E]ven though actual monetary harm is a sufficient condition to show concrete harm,

it is not a necessary condition.” Lane, 2016 WL 3671467 at *4.

PARTIES
8. Plaintiff, Amanda Schnorrbusch (hereafter “Ms. Schnorrbusch”), is a natural person
currently residing in the State of Texas.
9. Ms. Schnorrbusch is a “consumer” within the meaning of the Fair Debt Collection
Practices Act.
10. Defendant GC Services Limited Partnership (“GC”) is a Delaware corporation

engaged in the business of collecting debts, using mails and telephone, in this state with its corporate
headquarters located at 6330 Gulfton, Houston, Texas, 77081.
11. GC is engaged in the business of a collection agency, using the mails and telephone to

collect consumer debts originally owed to others.
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12. GC regularly collects or attempts to collect defaulted consumer debts due or asserted

to be due another, and is a “debt collector” as defined in 15 U.S.C. § 1692a(6) of the FDCPA.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS
13. Plaintiff is a natural person allegedly obligated to pay a debt asserted to be owed to a
creditor other than Defendant.
14. Upon information and belief, on a date better known by Defendant, Defendant began

to attempt to collect an alleged consumer debt from the Plaintiff.

15. On or about August 1, 2017, GC sent the Plaintiff a collection letter. Said letter is
attached and fully incorporated herein as Exhibit A.

16. Said letter listed stated “YOU OWE: CONN APPLIANCES, INC.”

17. Language stating who the original creditor is never used in the Letter.

18. Upon information and belief, GC utilized the term “you owe” in an attempt to
circumvent the necessity of stating explicitly whom is the original creditor of the alleged debt.

19. The least sophisticated consumer is left in the dark as to whether Conn Appliances,
Inc. is the original creditor, another third-party creditor, or even a creditor at all.

20. The term “you owe” in the letter is ambiguous at best, but will likely mislead the least
sophisticated consumer when attempting to discover where this alleged debt originated.

21. The least sophisticated consumer is left confused as to who the current creditor or

original creditor is in this case.l

1 Lee v. Forster & Garbus LLLP, 12 cv 420, 2013 WL 776740 (E.D. N.Y. 2013) ("Defendants fare no
better insisting that any misidentification in the Collection Letter was immaterial. As an initial matter,

this argument only could apply to the alleged Section 1692e and Section 1692f violations. Section
1692(g)[(a)](2) specifically requires debt collectors to identify the creditor to whom the debt is owed
in the initial communication or within five days of the initial communication. There is nothing in the
statute requiring the identity of the creditor to be “material” to the communication. In addition, even
assuming, arguendo, that a deceptive statement must be material to violate Section 1692e and Section
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22. Exhibit A is deceptive and misleading in violation of 15 U.S.C. {§ 1692e and
1692¢(10).
23. Exhibit A is deceptive and misleading as it failed to correctly identify with any

specificity the original creditor to whom the debt is owed in violation of 15 U.S.C. §§ 1692¢, 1692¢(10).

24. Plaintiff suffered injury-in-fact by being subjected to unfair and abusive practices of
the Defendant.
25. Plaintiff suffered actual harm by being the target of the Defendant’s misleading debt

collection communications.

26. Defendant violated the Plaintiff’s right not to be the target of misleading debt
collection communications.

27. Defendant violated the Plaintiff’s right to a truthful and fair debt collection process.

28. Defendant used materially false, deceptive, misleading representations and means in
its attempted collection of Plaintiff’s alleged debt.

29. Defendant’s communications were designed to cause the debtor to suffer a harmful
disadvantage in charting a course of action in response to the Defendant’s collection efforts.

30. The FDCPA ensures that consumers are fully and truthfully apprised of the facts and
of their rights, the act enables them to understand, make informed decisions about, and participate
fully and meaningfully in the debt collection process. The purpose of the FDCPA is to provide

information that helps consumers to choose intelligently. The Defendant’s false representations

1692, failing to identify the creditor here after “pay to the order of” on the payment check to ensure
that the debt is satisfied. Accordingly, Defendants' materiality argument is without merit."), Pardo v.
Allied Interstate, LI.C, 2015 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 125526 (S.D. Ind. Sept. 21, 2015); Walls v. United
Collection Bureau, Inc., 2012 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 68079, *4-5, 2012 WL 1755751 (N.D. Ill. May 16,
2012), Deschaine v. Nat'l Enter. Sys., 2013 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 31349, *3-5 (N.D. Ill. Mar. 7, 2013).
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misled the Plaintiff in a manner that deprived her of her right to enjoy these benefits; these materially
misleading statements trigger liability under section 1692e of the Act.

31. These deceptive communications additionally violated the FDCPA since they frustrate
the consumer’s ability to intelligently choose his or her response.

32. Plaintiff seeks to end these violations of the FDCPA. Plaintiff has suffered damages
including but not limited to, fear, stress, mental anguish, emotional stress and acute embarrassment.
Plaintiff and putative class members are entitled to preliminary and permanent injunctive relief,
including, declaratory relief, and damages.

33. All of Defendant’s actions complained of herein occurred within one year of the date
of this Complaint.

34. Defendant’s conduct has caused Plaintiff to suffer damages including but not limited
to the loss of time incurred by Plaintiff as well as attorneys’ fees paid for advice regarding her situation.

35. Congress has found that “[a]busive debt collection practices contribute to the number
of personal bankruptcies, to marital instability, to the loss of jobs, and to invasions of individual
privacy.” 15 U.S.C. § 1692(a).

36. Here, Plaintiff has suffered an injury-in-fact in at least one of the manners

contemplated by Congress when it passed the FDCPA because of Defendant’s conduct.

37. Plaintiff’s injury-in-fact is fairly traceable to the challenged representations of
Defendant.

38. Plaintiff’s injury-in-fact is likely to be redressed by a favorable decision in this Court.

39. Defendant’s collection communications are to be interpreted under the “least

sophisticated consumer” standard. See, Goswami v. Am. Collections Enter., Inc., 377 F.3d 488, 495

(5™ Cir. 2004); Taylor v. Perrin, Landry, delaunay & Durand, 103 F.3d 1232, 1236 (5th Cir.1997)

(When deciding whether a debt collection letter violates the FDCPA, this court “must evaluate any
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potential deception in the letter under an unsophisticated or least sophisticated consumer standard.)
See Also, Goswami, 377 F.3d at 495. (We must “assume that the plaintiff-debtor is neither shrewd
nor experienced in dealing with creditors.”)

CLASS ALLEGATIONS

40. This action is brought as a class action. Plaintiff brings this action on behalf of herself
and on behalf of all other persons similarly situated pursuant to Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure.

41. The identities of all class members are readily ascertainable from the records of GC
and those business and governmental entities on whose behalf it attempts to collect debts.

42. Excluded from the Plaintiff's Class is GC and all officers, members, partners,
managers, directors, and employees of GC, and all of their respective immediate families, and legal
counsel for all parties to this action and all members of their immediate families.

43. There are questions of law and fact common to the Plaintiff's Class, which common
issues predominate over any issues involving only individual class members. The principal issues are
whether GC’s communications with the Plaintiff, such as the above stated claims, violate provisions
of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act.

44, The Plaintiff's claims are typical of the class members, as all are based upon the same
facts and legal theories.

45. The Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the Plaintiff's Class
defined in this complaint. The Plaintiff has retained counsel with experience in handling consumer
lawsuits, complex legal issues, and class actions, and neither the Plaintiff nor her attorneys have any

interests, which might cause them not to vigorously pursue this action.
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46. This action has been brought, and may properly be maintained, as a class action
pursuant to the provisions of Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure because there is a well-
defined community interest in the litigation:

a. Numerosity: The Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that the
Plaintiff's Class defined above is so numerous that joinder of all members would be impractical.

b. Common Questions Predominate: Common questions of law and fact exist as to

all members of the Plaintiff's Class and those questions predominate over any questions or issues
involving only individual class members. The principal issues are whether GC’s communications with
the Plaintiff, such as the above stated claims, violate provisions of the Fair Debt Collection Practices
Act.

C. Typicality: The Plaintiff's claims are typical of the claims of the class members.
Plaintiff and all members of the Plaintiff's Class defined in this complaint have claims arising out of
the Defendant's common uniform course of conduct complained of herein.

d. Adequacy: The Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the class
members insofar as Plaintiff has no interests that are adverse to the absent class members. The Plaintiff
is committed to vigorously litigating this matter. Plaintiff has also retained counsel experienced in
handling consumer lawsuits, complex legal issues, and class actions. Neither the Plaintiff nor her
counsel have any interests, which might cause them not to vigorously pursue the instant class action
lawsuit.

e. Superiority: A class action is superior to the other available means for the fair and
efficient adjudication of this controversy because individual joinder of all members would be
impracticable. Class action treatment will permit a large number of similarly situated persons to
prosecute their common claims in a single forum efficiently and without unnecessary duplication of

effort and expense that individual actions would engender. Certification of a class under Rule
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23(b)(1)(A) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure is appropriate because adjudications with respect
to individual members create a risk of inconsistent or varying adjudication which could establish
incompatible standards of conduct for Defendant who, upon information and belief, collects debts
throughout the United States of America.

47. Certification of a class under Rule 23(b)(2) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure is
also appropriate in that a determination that the above stated claims, violate provisions of the Fair
Debt Collection Practices Act, and is tantamount to declaratory relief and any monetary relief under
the FDCPA would be merely incidental to that determination.

48. Certification of a class under Rule 23(b)(3) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure is
also appropriate in that the questions of law and fact common to members of the Plaintiff's Class
predominate over any questions affecting an individual member, and a class action is superior to other
available methods for the fair and efficient adjudication of the controversy.

49, Further, GC has acted, or failed to act, on grounds generally applicable to the Rule
(b)D(A) and (b)(2) Class, thereby making appropriate final injunctive relief with respect to the Class
as a whole.

50. Depending on the outcome of further investigation and discovery, Plaintiff may, at the
time of class certification motion, seek to certify one or more classes only as to particular issues
pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(c)(4).

51. This cause of action is brought on behalf of Plaintiff and the members of a class.

52. The class consists of all persons whom Defendant's records reflect resided in the State
of Texas and who were sent a collection letter in substantially the same form letter as the letters sent
to the Plaintiff on or about August 1, 2017 (Exhibit A) and (a) the collection letter was sent to a
consumer secking to collect a debt for personal, family or household purposes; and (b) the collection

letter was sent from one year before the date of this Complaint to the present; and (c) the collection
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letter was not returned by the postal service as undelivered; and (d) the Plaintiff asserts that the letter
contained violations of 15 U.S.C. §§ 1692¢, 1692¢(10), 1692g and 1692g(a)(2) for failing to correctly
identify the name of the creditor to whom the debt is owed.

COUNT I: Violations Of § 1692g(a)(2) Of The FDCPA — Failure to Identify the Name of the
Current Creditor

53. Plaintiff incorporates by reference all other paragraphs of this Petition as if fully stated
herein.

54. Section 1692g of the FDCPA requires that, within 5 days of Defendant’s first
communication to a consumer, it had to provide Plaintiff with an effective validation notice,
containing, among other disclosures, “the name of the creditor to whom the debt is owed” see, 15
U.S.C. § 1692¢g(a)(2).

55. Defendant’s form collection letters violated § 1692g(a)(2) of the FDCPA because they
failed to identify the current creditor to whom the debt was owed, see, Janetos, 825 F.3rd at 321-23;

see also, Long v. Fenton & McGarvey Law Firm P.S.C.; 223 F. Supp. 3d 773 (S.D. Ind. 2016); Pardo

v. Allied Interstate, No. 1:14-cv-01104-SEB-DML, 2015 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 125526 (S.D. Ind. Sep. 21,

2015); Deschaine v. National Enterprise Systems, No. 12 C 50416, 2013 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 31349

(N.D. Ill. Mar. 7, 2013); Walls v. United Collection Bureau, No. 11 C 6026, 2012 U.S. Dist. LEXIS

68079 (N.D. Ill. May 16, 2012); Braatz v. Leading Edge Recovery Solutions, No. 11 C 3835, 2011 U.S.
Dist. LEXIS 123118 (N.D. Ill. Oct. 20, 2011).

56. Defendant’s violation of § 1692g of the FDCPA renders it liable for actual and
statutory damages, costs, and reasonable attorneys’ fees. See, 15 U.S.C. § 1692k.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, Amanda Schnorrbusch, individually and on behalf of all others

similarly situated, prays that this Court:
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A. Declare that Defendant’s debt collection actions violate the FDCPA;

B. Enter judgment in favor of Plaintiff Amanda Schnorrbusch, individually and on behalf
of all others similarly situated, and against Defendant, for actual and statutory damages, costs, and
reasonable attorneys’ fees as provided by § 1692k(a) of the FDCPA; and

C. Grant other such further relief as deemed just and proper.

COUNT II: Violations Of § 1692e¢ Of The FDCPA — False, Deceptive, Or Misleading
Collection Actions

57. Plaintiff incorporates by reference all other paragraphs of this Petition as if fully stated
herein.
58. Section 1692e of the FDCPA prohibits a debt collector from using any false, deceptive,

or misleading representation or means in connection with the collection of any debt.

59. Making an omission as to the name of the original creditor violates § 1692e of the
FDCPA.

60. Defendant’s communications with Plaintiff were deceptive and misleading.

61. Defendant used unfair and unconscionable means to attempt to collect the alleged

debt.

62. Defendant’s violation of § 1692e of the FDCPA renders it liable for actual and
statutory damages, costs, and reasonable attorneys’ fees. See, 15 U.S.C. § 1692k.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, Amanda Schnorrbusch, individually and on behalf of all others
similarly situated, prays that this Court:

A. Declare that Defendant’s debt collection actions violate the FDCPA;

B. Enter judgment in favor of Plaintiff Amanda Schnorrbusch, individually and on behalf
of all others similarly situated, and against Defendant, for actual and statutory damages, costs, and

reasonable attorneys’ fees as provided by § 1692k(a) of the FDCPA; and

10
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C. Grant other such further relief as deemed just and proper.

COUNT III: Violations Of § 1692d & 1692f Of The FDCPA — Harassment or Abuse, False
or Misleading Representation, & Unfair Practices

63. Plaintiff incorporates by reference all other paragraphs of this Petition as if fully stated
herein.

64. Section 1692d prohibits any debt collector from engaging in any conduct the natural
consequence of which is to harass, oppress, or abuse any person in connection with the collection of
a debt.

65. Defendant’s communications with Plaintiff were meant to shame, embarrass, and

harass Plaintiff by misrepresenting the alleged debts status.

66. Section 1692f prohibits the use of unfair and unconscionable means to collect a debt.
67. Defendant’s communications with Plaintiff were deceptive and misleading.
68. Defendant used unfair and unconscionable means to attempt to collect the alleged

debt.

69. Defendant’s violation of § 1692d and § 1692f of the FDCPA renders it liable for actual
and statutory damages, costs, and reasonable attorneys’ fees. See, 15 U.S.C. § 1692k.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, Amanda Schnorrbusch, individually and on behalf of all others
similarly situated, prays that this Court:

A. Declare that Defendant’s debt collection actions violate the FDCPA;

B. Enter judgment in favor of Plaintiff Amanda Schnorrbusch, individually and on behalf
of all others similarly situated, and against Defendant, for actual and statutory damages, costs, and
reasonable attorneys’ fees as provided by § 1692k(a) of the FDCPA; and

C. Grant other such further relief as deemed just and proper.

11
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JURY DEMAND
70. Plaintiff demands a trial by jury on all Counts so triable.
Dated: July 18, 2018
Respectfully Submitted,
HALVORSEN KLOTE
By: /s/ Joel S. Halvorsen

12

Joel S. Halvorsen, #67032
680 Craig Road

Suite 104

St. Louis, MO 63141

P: (314) 451-1314

F: (314) 787-4323
joel@hklawstl.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff

PagelD 12
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| GC Services Limited Partnership

COGLSVT0 064 - !
PO Box 1022
Wixom MI 48383-1022
N S Please calls 838-417-6970

& Calls may be monftored or recorded

 August 1, 2017 ~
: ©Ed§ CORRESPONDENCE AND PAYMENT MAILING ADDRESS:

Sy 3s62 -
UG LT TR T PR TR N
Amanda M Schnorrbusch - 0 BOX 3346

i HAUSTON TX 77253

GC NUMBER: JSNP621 |

YHPLEASE DTTACH ANEYR STURN UPPER PORTION OF STATEMENT WITH PAYMENT*

File Number: 010
Client Account Number: 34
_ ‘Balance Due; $5,135.00

August 1, 2017

Dl i SCHNORRBUSCH,

We are writing In reference to your account with CONN APPLIANCES, ING..

We understand that you may hot be able to pay the entire balance in one payment. We are willing to work with
you tofind a mutually agreeable repayment plan that will both take your particular financlal circumstances into
account and satisfy our client, We urge you to contact us at: §88-417-6970 to discuss your repayment plan

“options. Or; if you'd Jike, you can answer the questions on the reverse side of this letter and return the top portion

to us.and we'll evaluate your request, We look forward to helping you resolve your account. Thank you,

Sinceraly,
.Rudy Vargas

“Account Representative

B T o e et b -

- T aeml s

If you would prefer, you can make a payment on your account using a credit or debit card by going to our website
at www.gepayonline.com. Use the following number to Identify vourself when prompted; 828717052210621 :
: ’ - ’ “ e

X

This communication is from a debt colleckor, This Is an attempt to collect a debi, Any information:

| obtained will be used for that purpose,
NOTICE: SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR IMPORTANT CONSUMER INFORMATION
GC Services Linlted Partnership ~ 6330 Gulfton, Houston, TX 77081
0223-17 IMG-PEL 828717052210621 38863088
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S

Pl

Please:indicaty bielow your proposed monthly: payment:andl due-date.

Proposed Monthiy Paymentcd . DueDate: _

“ Xty w-)«-{n‘.-.'

fx-a

Home-Phione Number: .

Alterriate

Phione Number: .

o :
- K . 'ﬁ"’?‘:'

win® b

-5 *’M{Vf;.

. ~‘_. +

Federe\i nd: state: faw:prohibit: qe:laln mamods of tcollactton o treat’
ﬂant o .*lhe "W Brel ool ecung yourde Bmease véiat%uﬁm méag%g by falrly I.’fva%ga ve

‘t}}gsh onfine L.gavy by phone af 1-877 by mall-at 600 Pennsylvania. va.,Nw

ol gﬁon, IZC zosso. If 'ou want Informiation ahoutyour rfghts when you'are contacted by-a:debt: eo!!aelnr,

:the FTC-online: at-www.ftc.gov, o ¥ B

-'.‘..’v N

m *
PRy
Rt

e

Ry ;?fl' 0

"-Z"

T Ay

. .:::f o .(‘fn».
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The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law, except as
provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the

purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet.

(SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF TIIS FORM.)

I. (a) PLAINTIFFS

Amanda Schnorrbusch, individually and on behalf of all others similarly

situated,

(b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff ~ Kaufman County

DEFENDANTS
GC Services Limited Partnership

County of Residence of First Listed Defendant

(EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES)

(C) Attorneys (Firm Nume, Address, and Telephone Nuniher)

Joel S. Halvorsen, Halvorsen Klote, 680 Craig Road, Suite 104, St.
Louis, Missouri 63141; P: (314) 451-1314; F: (314) 787-4323

(IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)

IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF
THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED.

NOTE;

Attorneys (If Known)

11. BASIS OF JURISDICTION (Place un “X " in One Box Only)

o1 - O] Federal Question

(U.S. Government Nota Party)

U.S. Government
Plaintiff

0 2 U.S. Government
Defendant

0 4 Diversity
(Indicate Citizenship of Parties in ltem [11)

111. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES (Piuce an “X" in One Box for Plaintiff

(For Diversity Cases Only) and One Bux for Defendant)

PTF  DEF PTF DEF
Citizen of This State | 3 1 Incorporated or Principal Place 04 04
of Business In This State
Citizen of Another State 0 2 O 2 Incorporated and Principal Place os5 0Oas
of Business In Another State
Citizen or Subject of a 0 3 @ 3 ForeignNation g6 06

Foreign Country

lV NATURE OF SUlT (Pfuneurz ‘X" in One Box Only)

3 110 Insurance PERSONAL INJURY PERSONAL INJURY
0O 120 Marine 0 310 Airplane O 365 Personal Injury -
O 130 Miller Act 3 315 Airplane Product Product Liability
O 140 Ncgotiable Instrument Liability O 367 Health Care/
O 150 Recovery of Overpayment | O 320 Assault, Libel & Pharmaceutical
& Enforcement of Judgment Slander Personal Injury
0O 151 Medicare Act 0 330 Federal Employers’ Product Liability
O 152 Recovery of Defaulted Liability 3 368 Asbestos Personal
Student Loans O 340 Marinc Injury Product
(Excludes Veterans) O 345 Marine Product Liability

PERSONAL PROPERTY
0 370 Other Fraud
3 371 Truth in Lending
3 380 Other Personal
Property Damage
3 385 Property Damage
Product Liability

153 Recovery of Overpayment
of Veteran's Benefits

160 Stockholders® Suits

190 Other Contract

195 Contract Product Liability

196 Franchise

Liability

O 350 Motor Vehicle

3 355 Motor Vchicle
Product Linability

0 360 Other Personal
Injury

O 362 Personal Injury -

Medical Malpractice

3 210 Land Condemnation
3 220 Foreclosure

3 440 Other Civil Rights

3 441 Voting

0 442 Employment

0 443 Housing/
Accommodations

O 445 Amer. w/Disabilities -

llnhens Corpus:
3 463 Alien Detainee
0 510 Motions to Vacate
Sentence
7 530 General
0 535 Death Penalty

O 230 Rent Lease & Ejectment
O 240 Torts to Land

M 245 Tort Product Liability
3 250 All Other Real Property

Employment Other:
M 446 Amer. w/Disubilities - | M 540 Mandamus & Other
Other 0 550 Civil Rights

J 448 Education 3 555 Prison Condition
0 560 Civil Detainee -
Conditions of

Confincment

R TORIS T R

1M 790 Other Labor Litigation

0 375 False Claims Act

0 376 Qui Tam (31 USC
3729(a))

0 400 Statc Reapportionment

213 410 Antitrust

3 430 Banks and Banking

O 450 Commerce

3 460 Deportation

3 470 Racketeer Influcnced and
Corrupt Organizations

10 480 Consumer Credit

3 490 Cable/Sat TV

0 625 Drug Related Seizure
of Property 21 USC 881
O 690 Other

0 422 Appeal 28 USC 158
0 423 Withdrawal
28 USC 157

3 820 Copyrights
O 830 Patent
O 835 Patent - Abbreviated
New Drug Application
D 840 Tradcmark

0 861 HIA (1395f)

EI 710 Falr L'lhcr Slandards

Act 3 862 Black Lung (923) O 850 Sceuritics/Commoditics/
O 720 Labor/Management 0 863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g)) Exchange
Relations 0 864 SSID Title XVI (% 890 Other Statutory Actions

O 740 Railway Labor Act
O 751 Family and Medical
Leave Act

3 865 RSI (405(g))

O 891 Agricultural Acts

O 893 Environmental Matters

O 895 Freedom of Information
Act

3 896 Arbitation

0 899 Administrative Procedure
ActReview or Appeal of
Agency Decision

M 950 Constitutionality of
State Statutes

0O 870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff
or Defendant)

O 871 IRS—Third Party
26 USC 7609

0 791 Employee Retirement
Income Sccurity Act

[ VIGRATION. ]
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